
 
  

CITY OF LAWNDALE 
14717 Burin Avenue, Lawndale, California 90260 

Phone (310) 973-3200 – www.lawndalecity.org 
 

AGENDA 
LAWNDALE CITY COUNCIL REGULAR MEETING 

Monday, April 6, 2020 - 6:30 p.m. 
Lawndale City Hall Council Chamber 

14717 Burin Avenue 
 

* COVID-19 NOTICE * 
Consistent with Executive Orders No.-25-20 and No. N-29-20 from the Executive Department of 
the State of California and the Los Angeles County Health Official’s “Safer at Home” Order, this 
City Council meeting will not be physically open to the public as City Councilmembers will be 
teleconferencing into the meeting via Webex Communications. 
 
How to observe the Meeting:  
To maximize public safety while still maintaining transparency and public access, members of the public 
can observe the meeting on YouTube “Lawndale CityTV”, the City Website, or Lawndale Community 
Cable Television on Spectrum Channel 22 & Frontier Channel 29. 
 
How to submit Public Comment:  
Members of the public may provide public comment by sending comments to the Clerk by email at 
cityclerk@lawndalecity.org.  Please submit your written comments as early as possible, preferably prior 
to the start of the meeting or if you are unable to email, please call the City Clerk's Office at (310) 973-
3213 by 5:30 p.m. on the date of the meeting. Email comments must identify the Agenda Item Number 
in the subject line of the email.  The public comment period will close once the public comment time for 
the agenda item has concluded. The comments will be entered into the record and provided to the 
Council. All comments should be a maximum of 500 words, which corresponds to approximately 3 
minutes of speaking time.  Please see the Temporary eComment Policy for Public Meetings. 
 
Copies of this Agenda packet may be obtained prior to the meeting outside of the Lawndale City Hall foyer 
or on the City Website.  Interested parties may contact the City Clerk Department at (310) 973-3213 for 
clarification regarding individual agenda items. 
 

This Agenda is subject to revision up to 72 hours before the meeting. 
 

A. CALL TO ORDER AND ROLL CALL 
 

B. CEREMONIALS (Flag Salute and Inspiration) 
 

C. PUBLIC SAFETY REPORT 
 

D. ORAL COMMUNICATIONS - ITEMS NOT ON THE AGENDA (Public Comments) 
 

E. COMMENTS FROM COUNCIL 
 

F. CONSENT CALENDAR  
 

https://www.youtube.com/channel/UCfzabQru02YprD2xs5FC2Ow
http://192.168.10.14/CablecastPublicSite/watch/1?channel=3
mailto:cityclerk@lawndalecity.org
http://www.lawndalecity.org/ASSETS/PDF/Corona/City%20of%20Lawndale%20-%20eComment%20Policy.pdf
http://www.lawndalecity.org/HTML/DEPTHTML/CCLERK/CCAgendasMinutes.htm


Agenda 
City Council Regular Meeting 
April 6, 2020 
Page 2 
 
 

 

Items 1 through 4, will be considered and acted upon under one motion unless a City Councilmember 
removes individual items for further City Council consideration or explanation. 

  
1. Motion to read by title only and waive further reading of all ordinances listed on the  

Agenda 
Recommendation: that the City Council approve. 

 
2. Consideration of Claims Against the City 

Recommendation: that the City Council reject the claim filed by Francisco J. Lopez and 
instruct staff to process the appropriate correspondence to the claimant. 
 

3. Accounts Payable Register 
Recommendation: that the City Council adopts Resolution No. CC-2004-018, authorizing 
the payment of certain claims and demands in the amount of $648,779.99. 

 
4. Minutes of the Lawndale City Council Regular Meeting – March 16, 2020 

Recommendation: that the City Council approve. 
 

G. ADMINISTRATION 
 
5. Authorizing Application For and Receipt of Local Early Action Planning Grant  

Funding 
Recommendation: that the City Council (a) that the consideration of Resolution CC-2004-
017 is exempt from the California Environmental Quality Act ("CEQA") pursuant to 
Section 15378 of the CEQA Guidelines; and (b) adopt Resolution No. CC-2004-017 
authorizing staff to submit an application for grant funding from the Local Early Action 
Planning Grant Program. 

 
6. Urgency Ordinance Prohibiting Eviction during the COVID-19 Pandemic 

Recommendation: that the City Council consider whether to adopt Urgency Ordinance 
1170-20, that prohibits residential and commercial evictions resulting from the COVID-
19 pandemic, effective immediately. 

 
7. Further Modifications to City Operations and Related Issues Due to the 

COVID-19 Pandemic 
Recommendation: that the City Council consider and approve (a) Ratification of staff’s 
decision to temporarily suspend parking enforcement for street sweeping, and to dismiss 
street sweeping related parking citations issued on March 16-17, 2020; (b) Cancellation 
of the April 25, 2020 Community Bike Ride and Youth Day Parade/Spring Extravaganza; 
(c) Form a City Council budget subcommittee to work with staff in reviewing revenue 
and expenditure projections and to develop recommendations for City Council 
consideration; and (d) Provide direction to staff regarding Transient Occupancy Tax 
collection, and penalties and interest measures. 
 

H. CITY MANAGER'S REPORT 
  



Agenda 
City Council Regular Meeting 
April 6, 2020 
Page 3 
 
 

 

I. ITEMS FROM CITY COUNCILMEMBERS 
 

8. Mayor/City Councilmembers Report of Attendance at Meetings and/or Events 
 

J. CLOSED SESSION 
 
9. Conference with Legal Counsel – Anticipated Litigation 

The City Council will conduct a closed session, pursuant to Government Code section 
54956.9(d)(4), because the City is considering whether to initiate litigation in one case. 

 
10. Conference with Legal Counsel – Existing Litigation 

The City Council will conduct a closed session, pursuant to Government Code section 
54956.9(d)(1), to confer with legal counsel regarding litigation to which the City is a 
party.  The title of such litigation is as follows: WIA/CTIA Petition for Rulemaking and 
Declaratory Ruling (WT Docket No. 19-250, RM-11849). 
 

K. ADJOURNMENT 
 
The next regularly scheduled meeting of the City Council will be held at 6:30 p.m. on Monday, 
April 20, 2020 in the Lawndale City Hall council chamber, 14717 Burin Avenue, Lawndale, 
California. 
 

It is the intention of the City of Lawndale to comply with the Americans with Disabilities Act (ADA) in 
all respects.  If, as an attendee or a participant at this meeting, you will need special assistance beyond 
what is normally provided, we will attempt to accommodate you in every reasonable manner.  Please 
contact the City Clerk Department (310) 973-3213 prior to the meeting to inform us of your particular 
needs and to determine if accommodation is feasible.  Please advise us at that time if you will need 
accommodations to attend or participate in meetings on a regular basis. 
 

I hereby certify under penalty of perjury under the laws of the State of California that the Agenda 
for the regular meeting of the City Council to be held on April 6, 2020 was posted not less than 
72 hours prior to the meeting. 

 
 
       _________________________________ 
       Matthew Ceballos, Assistant City Clerk 



1



2









RESOLUTION NO. CC- 2004-018 

A RESOLUTION OF THE CITY COUNCIL 

OF THE CITY OF LAWNDALE, CALIFORNIA 

AUTHORIZING CERTAIN CLAIMS AND DEMANDS 

IN THE SUM OF $648,779.99 

THE CITY COUNCIL OF THE CITY OF LAWNDALE, CALIFORNIA, DOES HEREBY 
RESOLVE, DETERMINE AND ORDER AS FOLLOWS: 

SECTION 1. That in accordance with Sections 37202 and 37209 of the Government Code, 
the Finance Director, as certified below, hereby attests to the accuracy of these demands and to the 
availability of funds for the payment thereof. 

SECTION 2. That the following claims and demands have been audited as required by law, 
and that appropriations for these claims and demands are included in the annual budget as approved 
by the City Council. 

SECTION 3.That the claims and demands paid by check numbers 199236 through 199372 
for the aggregate total of $648,779.99 are hereby authorized. 

Effective Date: April 6, 2020 

Certified by: 

PASSED, APPROVED AND ADOPTED this 6th day of April, 2020. 

ATTEST: 

State of California 
County of Los Angeles 
City of Lawndale 

) 
) 
) 

Robert Pullen-Miles, Mayor 

ss 

3



I, Rhonda Hofmann Gorman, City Clerk of the City of Lawndale, California, do hereby certify that 
the City Council of the City of Lawndale duly approved and adopted the foregoing Resolution No. 
CC-2004-018 at a regular meeting of said Council held on the 6th day of April, 2020, by the 
following roll call vote:

Name 
Voting Present, Not Voting 

Absent 
Aye No Abstain Not Participating 

Robert Pullen-Miles, Mayor 

Bernadette Suarez, Mayor Pro Tern 

James H. Osborne 

Pat Kearney 

Daniel Reid 

Rhonda Hofmann Gorman, City Clerk 

Resolution No. CC-2004-018
Warrants 

2 



Claims and Demands Paid By Check:

Check Date Beginning Ending Aggregate Total

3/12/2020 199236 199291 434,985.65

3/19/2020 199292 199321 119,447.06

3/26/2020 199322 199372 94,347.28

Total Checks 648,779.99

Claims and Demands Paid By Electronic ACH Transfer:

Date Name of Payee Description Amount

Total ACH Payments 0.00

Total Audited Claims and Demands Paid 648,779.99

Check Number

City of Lawndale

Summary of Audited Claims and Demands

                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                













MINUTES OF THE 
LAWNDALE CITY COUNCIL REGULAR MEETING 

March 16, 2020 

A. CALL TO ORDER AND ROLL CALL

Mayor Pullen-Miles called the meeting to order at 6:33 p.m. in the City Hall council chamber, 14717
Burin Avenue, Lawndale, California.

Councilmembers Present: Mayor Robert Pullen-Miles, Mayor Pro Tem Bernadette Suarez,
Councilmember James H. Osborne, Councilmember Pat Kearney,
Councilmember Daniel Reid

Other Participants: City Clerk Rhonda Hofmann Gorman, City Manager Kevin M. 
Chun, City Attorney Tiffany J. Israel, Los Angeles County 
Sheriff's Department Captain Duane Allen, Community Services 
Director Mike Estes, Assistant to the City Manager/Human 
Resources Director Raylette Felton, Municipal Services Director 
Michael Reyes, Finance Director Marla Pendleton, Community 
Development Director Sean Moore, Assistant City Clerk Matthew 
Ceballos and approximately 7 audience members. 

B. CEREMONIALS

Mayor Pro Tem Suarez led the flag salute and Pastor Eddie Vargas, Restoration Life Church,
provided the inspiration.

Mayor Pullen-Miles recommended adding an item ratifying a Local Emergency Proclamation due
to the COVID-19 pandemic to the agenda as an “emergency situation”.

A motion by Councilmember Osborne to add an emergency situation item to the agenda was
seconded by Councilmember Kearney and carried by a vote of 5-0.

C. ADMINISTRATION

1. Local Emergency Proclamation – COVID-19

City Manager Kevin M. Chun reported on the proposed Local Emergency Proclamation and 
modifications to City operations. 

Councilmember Kearney opposed the cancellation of the Youth Day Parade and Bike Ride. A 
dialogue ensued between City Council and Community Services Director Mike Estes about events. 

City Council reached a general consensus to keep Youth Day Parade and bike ride until more 
information comes to light. 

Councilmember Kearney inquired about staffing of parks and facilities, if closed. City Manager 
Kevin Chun responded that part-time employees potentially losing hours.  Mayor Pullen-Miles 
responded part-time employees could not be penalized. Councilmember Reid inquired about part-
time staffs’ current time-off compensation. 

4



Minutes - City Council Regular Meeting 
March 16, 2020 
Page 2 of 6 
 
 

Community Services Director Mike Estes and City Manager/Human Resources Director Raylette, 
explained part-time staff are entitled to 24 hours of sick leave every calendar year and that other 
agencies are paying for advance paid leave or use the leave they have. 
 
City Council reached a general consensus to keep part-time employees paid and to explore 
other uses for part-time staffing. 
 
Councilmember Kearney and Mayor Pullen-Miles suggested placing part-time staff on the Meals 
on Wheels program where they would deliver all meals to Lawndale senior residents. 
 
Mayor Pro Tem Suarez suggested having a hotline about the virus staffed by our part-time workers. 
 
City Manager Kevin Chun spoke of City facilities accessibility.  He went on to explain Option 1, 
close City Hall and other City facilities to the public, have staff available to provide service by 
appointment only and over the phone or email, in order to practice social distancing, and Option 2, 
all facilities to remain open but encourage the public to reach staff by phone or email.  
 
City Council reached a general consensus to move forward with option 1, effective March 17, 
2020. 

 
City Manager Kevin Chun presented the Public meetings options: Option 1, close City Council and 
Commission meetings to the public. City Council meetings will be held remotely and public will 
view meeting online. Public comments will be gathered beforehand and addressed during the 
meeting. Limit City Council meeting to once a month. Commission meetings to be held only if need 
to, base on significant issues. Option 2, keep all meetings continue as usual but encourage the public 
to view online. 
 
City Council reached a general consensus to move forward with option 2, effective March 17, 
2020. 
 
City Manager Kevin Chun led the meeting into parking enforcement changes. 
 
City Council reached a general consensus to make no changes to parking enforcement during 
the Local Emergency. 
 
A motion by Councilmember Reid to adopt the Resolution No. CC-2003-016 approving the 
ratification of the Local Emergency Proclamation (COVID-19) and approving the 
modifications to City operations, was seconded by Councilmember Kearney and carried by 
a vote of 5-0. 

 
D. PRESENTATIONS  

 
Mayor Pullen-Miles postponed Item No. 2, a presentation on the 2020 Youth Day Parade 
“Pop Culture” Artwork Contest. 
 
2. 2020 Youth Day Parade “Pop Culture” Artwork Contest 
 

E. PUBLIC SAFETY REPORT 



Minutes - City Council Regular Meeting 
March 16, 2020 
Page 3 of 6 
 
 

 
Captain Allen spoke about the Coronavirus situation regarding the Los Angeles County Sheriff's 
Department with the summarized recent law enforcement activities. 
 

F. ORAL COMMUNICATIONS - ITEMS NOT ON THE AGENDA 
 
• Pam London, Resident, spoke about the potholes on Grevillea Ave. between 167th Street and 

168th Street.  Ms. London went on to speak about halting parking tickets during the local 
emergency.  
 

• Betsy Hamilton, Superintendent of Lawndale Elementary School District, spoke about the 
partnership of the District and the City, youth events, and school district operations.   

 
• Johnny London, Resident, spoke about the City assisting the public by appointment only and 

pay for part-time employees. 
 
G. COMMENTS FROM COUNCIL 

 
The City Council responded generally to the comments, but did not request placement of any issues 
on a future meeting agenda. 

 
Mayor Pullen-Miles inquired about the School Districts meal program. Betsy Hamilton, 
Superintendent of Lawndale Elementary School District, responded that there will be a combined 
breakfast and lunch bag being passed out as “Grab and Go” per child, served at participating schools. 

 
H. CONSENT CALENDAR 

 
2. Consideration of Claims Against the City 

Recommendation: that the City Council reject the claim filed by Mitra Gouel and instruct 
staff to process the appropriate correspondence to the claimant. 

 
3. Second Amendment to the Contract Services Agreement for Staff Augmentation  

Services with KOA Corporation 
Recommendation: that the City Council approve the Second Amendment to the Contract 
Services Agreement with KOA Corporation, extending the agreement to October 31, 
2020. 

 
4. Youth Advisory Committee Appointment 

Recommendation: that the City Council (a) approve the Mayor’s appointment by 
directing staff to insert the appointees’ name in Section 1 of Resolution No. CC-2003-
015, and (b) adopt the Resolution as amended. 

 
5. Accounts Payable Register 

Recommendation: that the City Council adopts Resolution No. CC-2003-014, authorizing 
the payment of certain claims and demands in the amount of $395,581.47. 

 
6. Minutes of the Lawndale City Council Regular Meeting – March 2, 2020 

Recommendation: that the City Council approve. 



Minutes - City Council Regular Meeting 
March 16, 2020 
Page 4 of 6 
 
 

 
A motion by Councilmember Kearney to approve the consent calendar was seconded by 
Councilmember Reid and carried by a vote of 5-0. 

 
I. ADMINISTRATION (Continued) 

 
7. Agreement to Update the City of Lawndale’s General Plan and Hawthorne  

Boulevard Specific Plan 
Recommendation: that the City Council (a) approve the Contract Service Agreement with 
De Novo Planning Group, for a term of March 17, 2020 to December 31, 2021, not to 
exceed $808,920, to update the City's General Plan and Hawthorne Boulevard Specific 
Plan, and (b) approve recommended budget adjustments for un-designating reserves, 
authorizing appropriations and anticipated grant funding, as detailed in the staff report. 

 
Director of Community Development Sean Moore reported on the agreement to update the City of 
Lawndale’s General Plan and Hawthorne Boulevard Specific Plan. 
 
Mayor Pro Tem Suarez inquired on the preliminary approval from Department of Housing, 
Community Development. Sean Moore responded accordingly.  
 
A motion by Councilmember Osborne to approve the Contract Service Agreement with De 
Novo Planning Group, for a term of March 17, 2020 to December 31, 2021, not to exceed 
$808,920, to update the City's General Plan and Hawthorne Boulevard Specific Plan, and 
approve recommended budget adjustments for un-designating reserves, authorizing 
appropriations and anticipated grant funding, as detailed in the staff report was seconded 
by Councilmember Kearney and carried by a vote of 5-0. 
 
8. Consideration of an Administrative Citation Process 

Recommendation: that the City Council (a) authorize staff to draft an Ordinance 
establishing an Administrative Citation process, and (b) to appropriate funds in the 
amount of $4,580 for citation administration. 

 
Municipal Services Director Michael Reyes provided a PowerPoint Presentation on the 
Consideration of an Administrative Citation Process. 
 
Public Comment 
 
Pam London, Resident, spoke about the proposed Administrative Citation Process. 
 
Mayor Pullen-Miles spoke about the proposed Administrative Citation Process and noted that it was 
another tool to combat code enforcement issues. 
 
A motion by Mayor Pullen-Miles to approve staff to draft an Ordinance establishing an 
Administrative Citation process and to appropriate funds in the amount of $4,580 for citation 
administration was seconded by Mayor Pro Tem Suarez and carried by a vote of 5-0. 

  



Minutes - City Council Regular Meeting 
March 16, 2020 
Page 5 of 6 
 
 

 
J. CITY MANAGER'S REPORT 

 
City Manager Kevin Chun had nothing to report. 
 

K. ITEMS FROM COUNCILMEMBERS 
 

9. Mayor/City Councilmembers Report of Attendance at Meetings and/or Events 
 
Councilmember Osborne spoke about the current COVID-19 pandemic. 
 
Councilmember Reid spoke about the current COVID-19 pandemic and wanted everyone to stay 
healthy and wished everyone a happy St. Patrick’s Day. 
 
Councilmember Kearney attended the Liability Trust Fund Oversight Committee meeting. 
 
Mayor Pro Tem Suarez attended the South Bay Cities Steering Committee meeting that discussed 
the COVID-19 pandemic. 
 
Mayor Pullen-Miles spoke about the current COVID-19 pandemic. 
 

L. CLOSED SESSION 
 
At 8:18 p.m. the City Council entered into closed session.  
 
10. Conference with Legal Counsel – Anticipated Litigation 

The City Council will conduct a closed session, pursuant to Government Code section 
54956.9(d)(4), because the City is considering whether to initiate litigation in one case. 

 
At 8:27 p.m. the City Council entered back into open session. 
 
City Attorney Tiffany Israel reported the City Council met in Closed Session to discuss the 
items listed on the Closed Session agenda. On item number 10, the City Council 
unanimously voted to authorize the initiation of a civil abatement against the owners of the 
4013 W. 161st Street, Lawndale, CA 90260. 
 

M. ADJOURNMENT 
 
There being no further business to conduct, the mayor adjourned the meeting at 8:28 p.m. 

 
 
  



Minutes - City Council Regular Meeting 
March 16, 2020 
Page 6 of 6 
 
 
 
       _________________________________ 
       Robert Pullen-Miles, Mayor 
 
ATTEST: 
 
 
_________________________________ 
Rhonda Hofmann Gorman, City Clerk 
 
Approved: 4/6/2020 
 



5





RECOMMENDATION 

It is recommended that the City Council take the following actions: 

A. Determine that the consideration of Resolution CC-2004-017 is exempt from the California 
Environmental Quality Act ("CEQA") pursuant to Section 15378 of the CEQA Guidelines; 
and 

B. Approve Resolution No. CC-2004-017 authorizing staff to submit an application for grant 
funding from the Local Early Action Planning Grant Program. 

ATTACHMENTS 

A. Resolution CC-2004-017 Local Early Action Planning Grant Program 
B. Local Early Action Planning Grant Program Guidelines 

Ol 148.0001/638334.3 3 





Resolution No. CC-2004-017 
Local Early Action Planning Grant  
Funding 

RESOLUTION NO. CC-2004-017 

A RESOLUTION OF THE CITY COUNCIL 
OF THE CITY OF LAWNDALE, CALIFORNIA 

AUTHORIZING APPLICATION FOR AND RECEIPT OF, 
LOCAL GOVERNMENT SUPPORT GRANT PROGRAM FUNDS 

WHEREAS, pursuant to Health and Safety Code 50515 et. seq, the Department of Housing 
and Community Development (“Department”) is authorized to issue a Notice of Funding 
Availability (“NOFA”) as part of the Local Government Planning Support Grants Program 
(hereinafter referred to by the Department as the Local Early Action Planning Grants program or 
“LEAP”); and 

WHEREAS, the Department has issued a NOFA and Application on January 27, 2020 in 
the amount of $119,040,000 for assistance to all California Jurisdictions; and 

WHEREAS, the City Council of the City of Lawndale desires to submit a LEAP grant 
application package (“Application”), on the forms provided by the Department, for approval of 
grant funding for projects that assist in the preparation and adoption of planning documents and 
process improvements that accelerate housing production and facilitate compliance to implement 
the sixth cycle of the regional housing need assessment. 

NOW, THEREFORE, THE CITY COUNCIL OF THE CITY OF LAWNDALE, 
CALIFORNIA, DOES HEREBY RESOLVE AS FOLLOWS: 

SECTION 1. The City Manager, or his designee, is hereby authorized and directed to apply 
for and submit to the Department the Application package. 

SECTION 2. In connection with the LEAP grant, if the Application is approved by the 
Department, the City Manager, or his designee, is authorized to enter into, execute, and deliver on 
behalf of the City, a State of California Agreement (Standard Agreement) for the amount of 
$150,000.00, and any and all other documents required or deemed necessary or appropriate to 
evidence and secure the LEAP grant, the City’s obligations related thereto, and all amendments 
thereto. 

SECTION 3. The City shall be subject to the terms and conditions as specified in the NOFA 
and the Standard Agreement provided by the Department after approval of the Standard 
Agreement. The City agrees that the Application and any and all accompanying documents are 
incorporated in full as part of the Standard Agreement. Any and all activities funded, information 
provided, and timelines represented in the Application will be enforceable through the fully 
executed Standard Agreement. Pursuant to the NOFA and in conjunction with the terms of the 
Standard Agreement, the City hereby agrees to use the funds received for eligible uses and 
allowable expenditures in the manner presented and specifically identified in the approved 
Application. 

//// 

  



Resolution No. CC-2004-017 
Local Early Action Planning Grant  
Funding 

PASSED, APPROVED, AND ADOPTED this 6th day of April, 2020. 

 

       ______________________________ 

       Robert Pullen-Miles, Mayor 

ATTEST: 
 
State of California  ) 
County of Los Angeles ) SS 
City of Lawndale  ) 
 
I, Rhonda Hofmann Gorman, City Clerk of the City of Lawndale, California, do hereby certify that 
the City Council of the City of Lawndale duly approved and adopted the foregoing Resolution No. 
CC-2004-017 at a regular meeting of said Council held on the 6th day of April, 2020, by the following 
roll call vote: 
 

Name Voting Present, Not Voting Absent 
Aye No Abstain Not Participating 

Robert Pullen-Miles, Mayor      
Bernadette Suarez, Mayor Pro Tem      
Pat Kearney       
James H. Osborne      
Daniel Reid      

 
 
_______________________________ 
Rhonda Hofmann Gorman, City Clerk 
 
       APPROVED AS TO FORM: 
 
 
       ______________________________ 
       Tiffany J. Israel, City Attorney 
 









































6







Ordinance No. 1170-20 
Prohibition on Evictions 1 

URGENCY ORDINANCE NO. 1170-20  
 

AN URGENCY ORDINANCE OF THE CITY COUNCIL 
OF THE CITY OF LAWNDALE, CALIFORNIA 

PROHIBITING RESIDENTIAL AND COMMERCIAL TENANT  
EVICTIONS RELATED TO THE  

COVID-19 PANDEMIC AND EXEMPTION FROM CEQA 
 
 

SUMMARY:  Effective immediately, this ordinance prohibits residential and 
commercial evictions resulting from the COVID-19 pandemic. 
 
WHEREAS, in December of 2019, an outbreak of respiratory illness due to a novel coronavirus 

(a disease now known as COVID-19) was first identified in Wuhan City, Hubie Province, China; and 

WHEREAS, COVID-19 has since spread outside of China, impacting more than 177 countries, 
including the United States; and 

WHEREAS, the California Department of Public Health has activated its Medical and Health 
Coordination Center, and the Office of Emergency Services has activated the State Operations Center 
to provide support and guide actions to preserve public health; and 

WHEREAS, on March 4, 2020, Governor Newson declared the existence of a state of 
emergency for the State of California due to threats to people within the State from COVID-19 and the 
County declared the existence of a local emergency for Los Angeles County; and  
 

WHEREAS, on March 16, 2020, the Los Angeles County Health Officer (Health Officer) 
issued an order (“County Order”) prohibiting all indoor and outdoor, public and private events and 
gatherings within a confined space where 50 or more members of the public are expected to attend at 
the same time and to require social distancing measures and the temporary closure of certain 
businesses within the County. The order explains that it is based on evidence of increasing community 
transmission requiring the immediate implementation of additional community mitigation efforts to 
help reduce the spread of COVID-19 within the county. To further protect against the spread of 
COVID-19, the County Order also requires persons in charge of events and gatherings attended by 10-
49 persons to ensure that attendees follow specific social distancing measures and follow infection 
control guidelines for the duration of the event; and 

WHEREAS, also on March 16, 2020, the City Manager, in his role as the City’s Director of 
Emergency Services, proclaimed the existence of a local emergency to activate the City’s Emergency 
Operations Center as a result of the spread of COVID-19, which local emergency proclamation was 
ratified by the City Council on March 16, 2020; and 

WHEREAS, the Centers for Disease Control and Prevention, the California Department of 
Health, and the Los Angeles County Department of Public Health have all issued recommendations 
and/or orders including but not limited to social distancing, staying home if sick, canceling or 
postponing large group events, working from home, and other precautions to protect public health and 
prevent transmission of this communicable virus; and  



Ordinance No. 1170-20 
Prohibition on Evictions 2 

WHEREAS, on March 17, 2020, the Governor issued Executive Order N-28-20, which waived 
any provisions of state law that would preempt or otherwise restrict a local government’s exercise of 
its police power to impose substantive limitations on residential or commercial evictions, including but 
not limited to Civil Code Sections 1940 et seq. or 1954.25 et seq., until May 31, 2020, unless extended; 
and 

WHEREAS, on March 19, 2020, because of the continued rapid spread of COVID-19 and the 
need to protect the community, the County Order was expanded to prohibit all indoor public and 
private gatherings and all outdoor public and private events within a confided space where at least 10 
people are expected to be in attendance at the same time through at least April 19, 2020.  This updated 
County Order also required all nonessential businesses to close; and 

WHEREAS, also on March 19, 2020, the Governor issued Executive Order N-33-20, effective 
that night, requiring people within the State to stay at home, other than to obtain food and other 
essential services.  As a result of this  public health emergency and the precautions mandated, many 
tenants in Lawndale have experienced or expect soon to experience sudden and unexpected income 
loss; and  

WHEREAS, the Governor has stated that individuals exposed to COVID-19 may be 
temporarily unable to report to work due to illness caused by COVID-19 or quarantines related to 
COVID-19, and such individuals and their families may experience potential loss of income, health 
care and medical coverage, and ability to pay for housing and basic needs, thereby placing increased 
demands on already strained regional and local health and safety resources, including shelters and food 
banks; and 

WHEREAS, the County Order was further updated on March 21, 2020 to comply with the 
Governor’s Executive Order N-33-20, which ordered all individuals living in the State of California to 
stay home except as needed to maintain continuity of operations of critical infrastructure and to extend 
the list of the types of businesses required to be closed.  To the extent there remain differences in the 
standards adopted by the State and County, the stricter standards apply; and  

 

WHEREAS, the City Council the power, under Government Code sections 36934 and 36937, 
to adopt an ordinance that takes effect immediately if it is an ordinance “[f]or the immediate 
preservation of the public peace, health or safety, containing a declaration of the facts constituting the 
urgency, and is passed by a four-fifths vote of the City Council”; and 

WHEREAS, based on the forgoing, in the interest of public health and safety, as affected by the 
emergency caused by the spread of COVID-19, the City Council believes it is necessary to issue and 
implement this Urgency Ordinance to protect life, property and civil order. 

 NOW, THEREFORE, THE CITY COUNCIL OF THE CITY OF LAWNDALE, 
CALIFORNIA, DOES ORDAIN AS FOLLOWS: 
 
 SECTION 1. Recitals. The foregoing recitals are true and correct, and are incorporated herein 
by reference as findings of fact.  
 

SECTION 2. Urgency and Emergency Findings.  The City Council finds that there is a current 
and immediate threat to public health, safety, and welfare posed by COVID-19, and there is an 



Ordinance No. 1170-20 
Prohibition on Evictions 3 

immediate need for the preservation of public peace, health or safety of the residents and community 
of the City. One of the many effects of the COVID-19 pandemic is that the stay at home order 
precludes many residents of the City from working or significantly reduces the hours that may be 
worked or requires residents to refrain from working or to work fewer hours to take care of children 
who are home because schools are closed, take care of ill family members, or because they themselves 
are ill. The City Council further finds that during this local emergency, and in the interest of protecting 
the public health and preventing transmission of COVID-19, it is essential to avoid unnecessary 
housing displacement, to protect the City’s affordable housing stock, and to prevent housed individuals 
from falling into homelessness.  Additionally, the loss of income as a result of COVID-19 may inhibit 
City residents and businesses from fulfilling their financial obligations, including paying rent, while  
further economic impacts are anticipated, leaving tenants vulnerable to eviction.  

 SECTION 3. Prohibition on Evictions.  A temporary moratorium on eviction for non-payment 
of rent by residential and commercial tenants impacted by the COVID-19 crisis is imposed as follows:  

a. During the period of local emergency declared in response to COVID-19, no landlord shall 
endeavor to evict a tenant in either of the following situations: (1) for nonpayment of rent if the 
tenant demonstrates that the tenant is unable to pay rent due to financial impacts related to 
COVID-19 or (2) for a no-fault eviction unless necessary for the health and safety of tenants, 
neighbors, or the landlord.  A landlord who knows that a tenant cannot pay some or all of the 
rent temporarily for the reasons set forth above shall not serve a notice pursuant to Code of 
Civil Procedure Section 1161(2), file or prosecute an unlawful detainer action based on a 3-day 
pay or quit notice, or otherwise seek to evict for nonpayment of rent. A landlord knows of a 
tenant’s inability to pay rent within the meaning of this Ordinance if the tenant, within 30 days 
after the date that rent is due, notifies the landlord in writing of lost income and inability to pay 
full rent due to financial impacts related to COVID-19, and provides documentation to support 
the claim. For purposes of this Ordinance “in writing” includes email or text communications 
to a landlord or the landlord’s representative with whom the tenant has previously 
corresponded by email or text. Any medical or financial information provided to the landlord 
shall be held in confidence, and only used for evaluating the tenant’s claim. Nothing in this 
Ordinance shall relieve a tenant of liability for the unpaid rent, which the landlord may seek 
after expiration of the local emergency and the tenant must pay within six months of the 
expiration of the local emergency.  A landlord may not charge or collect a late fee for rent that 
is delayed for the reasons stated in this Ordinance; nor may a landlord seek rent that is delayed 
for the reasons stated in this Ordinance through the eviction process.    

b. For purposes of this Ordinance, “financial impacts related to COVID-19” include, but are not 
limited to, tenant lost household income as a result of any of the following: (1) being sick with 
COVID-19, or caring for a household or family member who is sick with COVID-19; (2) lay-
off, loss of hours, or other income reduction resulting from business closure or other economic 
or employer impacts of COVID-19; (3) compliance with a recommendation from a government 
health authority to stay home, self-quarantine, or avoid congregating with others during the 
state of emergency; (4) extraordinary out-of-pocket medical expenses; or (5) child care needs 
arising from school closures related to COVID-19.    

c.  For purposes of this Ordinance, “no-fault eviction” refers to any eviction for which the 
notice to terminate tenancy is not based on alleged fault by the tenant, including but not limited 



Ordinance No. 1170-20 
Prohibition on Evictions 4 

to eviction notices served pursuant to Code of Civil Procedure sections 1161(1), 1161(5), or 
1161c.  

d.  This Ordinance applies to nonpayment eviction notices, no-fault eviction notices, and 
unlawful detainer actions based on such notices, served or filed on or after March 16, 2020, the 
date on which a local emergency was proclaimed through May 31, 2020 as authorized in the 
Governor’s Executive Order N-28-20, or such longer period if this authorization is extended by 
the Governor.   

e.  The violation of this Ordinance shall be punishable as a misdemeanor as set forth in Section 
1.08.020 of the Lawndale Municipal Code.  In addition, this Ordinance grants a defense in the 
event that an unlawful detainer action is commenced in violation of this Ordinance.  

f.  This Ordinance may be superseded by a duly enacted Ordinance of the City Council that 
expressly supersedes this Ordinance. 

SECTION 4. Adoption; Effective Date. Pursuant to Government Code Section 36937, this 
ordinance shall take effective immediately upon approval of the same by a four-fifths (4/5) affirmative 
vote of the City Council. The City Council finds and determines that the same is necessary to the 
preservation of the public peace, health or safety, in that adoption of the same will help prevent price 
gouging during declared states of emergency.  

 SECTION 5. CEQA.  This Urgency Ordinance is exempt from the California Environmental 
Quality Act (“CEQA”) under Section 15061(b)(3) of the CEQA Guidelines, which provides that 
CEQA only applies to projects that have the potential for causing a significant effect on the 
environment. Where, as here, it can be seen with certainty that there is no possibility that the activity in 
question may have a significant effect on the environment, the activity is not subject to CEQA. The 
adoption of a temporary moratorium on evictions would not cause a significant effect on the 
environment.  
 

SECTION 6.  If any section, subsection, sentence, clause, or phrase of this ordinance is for any 
reason held to be invalid or unconstitutional by a decision of any court of any competent jurisdiction, 
such decision shall not affect the validity of the remaining portions of this ordinance. The City Council 
hereby declares that it would have passed this ordinance, and each and every section, subsection, 
sentence, clause and phrase thereof not declared invalid or unconstitutional without regard to whether 
any portion of the ordinance would be subsequently declared invalid or unconstitutional. 
 
 SECTION 7. The City Clerk shall certify to the passage and adoption of this Urgency 
Ordinance, and shall make a minute of the passage and adoption thereof in the records of and the 
proceedings of the City Council at which the same is passed and adopted. This ordinance shall be in 
full force and effect immediately and the City Clerk shall cause it to be posted and published in a 
newspaper of general circulation in the manner required by law. 
 
//// 



Ordinance No. 1170-20 
Prohibition on Evictions 5 

 PASSED, APPROVED, AND ADOPTED this 6th day of April, 2020. 
 
 
 
       ______________________________ 
       Robert Pullen-Miles, Mayor 
 
ATTEST: 
 
State of California  ) 
County of Los Angeles ) SS 
City of Lawndale  ) 
 
I, Rhonda Hofmann Gorman, City Clerk of the City of Lawndale, California, do hereby certify that the 
City Council duly adopted the foregoing Urgency Ordinance No. 1170-20 at its meeting held on the 
6th day of April, 2020, by the following roll call vote: 
 

Name Voting Present, Not Voting Absent 
Aye No Abstain Not Participating 

Robert Pullen-Miles, Mayor       
Bernadette Suarez, Mayor Pro Tem      
James H. Osborne      
Pat Kearny      
Daniel Reid       

 
 
______________________________   ______________ 
Rhonda Hofmann Gorman, City Clerk   Date 
 
 
APPROVED AS TO FORM: 
 
 
______________________________ 
Tiffany J. Israel, City Attorney 



crodriguez
Text Box
7







8



9



10


	20-04-06 reg.agn
	01. Reading of Ordiances
	02. Consideration of claim
	03. Warrant
	Warrant Summary - 2020.04.06
	Check Register - 2020.03.12
	Check Register - 2020.03.19
	Check Register - 2020.03.26

	04. 20-03-16.min
	05. LEAP Grant
	06. Urgency Ordinance 1170-20 - Prohibiting Evictions during COVID-19
	07. Further Modifications to City Operations and Related Issues due to COVID-19 Pandemic
	08. Councilmembers Report of Attendance
	09. CS Anticipated Litigation
	10. CS Existing Litigation

	Back to Agenda: 


